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The Advent of Stagecoach Lines in Wisconsin
By the late 1830, companies delivered mail and  passengers to key points.  Milwaukee, 

Green Bay, and Prairie du Chien were connected by the first Military roads. By the 1840’s, 
more “Plank Roads” were built.  The rides were long, dusty, bumpy and sometimes risky.



Routes connected early Wisconsin Territory villages.  Inns 
sprang up on these routes offering Rest-Food-Drink-Shelter.



Mequanigo, Big Bend, 
Caldwell & East Troy were on  
the roads west:  

- The Mukwonago Plank Road 
(National Avenue)
- The Janesville Plank Road 
(Forest Home Avenue)
These roads roughly followed 
earlier Native American 
paths.

Along the Janesville Plank 
Roads, inns were about 5 
miles apart.



Typical Stagecoach Inn Floor Plan



Charles B. Stockman Inn, South Main Street
Built a log cabin on the site in 1837. Married Lucy Jones in 1840. Likely Mukwonago’s 
first inn.  This was replaced with the frame structure in 1850 shown at left.  Since 1930, 
the Siefert family has owned the property and for many years was known as Siefert’s 
Lincoln Tap.  The fish fry was a local favorite but currently the building is headed for the 
wrecking ball.



John M. Stockman Inn,  

Purchased land east of Sea 
Serpent Lake (Upper Phantom) 
starting in 1837.  John’s and 
Louisa’s (nee Morse)  house was 
the third frame house in 
Mukwonago.  In 1852, the family 
left for California and ran a large 
hotel in White Oak, CA.    They 
returned  in 1856 and must have 
taken travelers into their home 
judging from the sign.  The house, 
near today’s Elegant Farmer, was 
burned for fire department 
training about a decade ago.





The Camp Hotel operated into the 
1880’s.  After Henry’s death, it 
was run by his widowed wife.  It 
was torn down in the the early 
1900’s.  This photo discovered in 
Arizona and put on eBay in late 
2024 has revealed a view of 
downtown that had been long 
forgotten.



The Mukwonago House Hotel, 111 Rochester Street

The Mukwonago House was built in 1846 and was one of the earliest 
hotels in the area.  On the first floor was the kitchen, dining room and 
reading room.  Sleeping quarters for fifty to seventy-five guests were 
on the second floor and a ball room was on the top floor.  Legend has 
it that none other than Sewall Andrews came to dances here and 
danced in his carpet slippers.  The balconies, now long removed, were 
supported by pillars.  Stagecoaches could pull up and unload luggage 
directly on the second floor for the guests.  An addition was added in 
1892.

Today the building houses
several businesses.  While it
has been stripped of most of 
its original accoutrements,  
its “bones” still  stand after
more than 170 years.  



Dance Tickets from Mukwonago House’s Heyday!



The Dillenbeck Hotel, 215 Rochester Street Gilbert Dillenbeck built this hotel in 1885 
and added an addition in 1893. It had 
forty rooms, an icehouse, shops, and a 
two-acre park.  Gilbert had earlier been a 
blacksmith. His father, Charles served in 
the Civil War.  Rooms cost $2.00 a night 
in its heyday and had a first-class 
delivery and stable.  It later changed 
hands and became the Park Hotel in 
1913.  In 1927, the north end of the hotel

caught fire after a New Year’s party.  
Later it became the Vista Gardens 
restaurant, then Inn The Olden 
Days.  More recently it has been 
the Fork in the Road restaurant 
where fire again struck in 2015.  
Restored once more, it continues 
to invite patrons with its food and 
hospitality.  



Leonard Martin Inn, Chamberlain ( Big Bend)
Situated on the old Janesville Plank Road (Forest Home Ave,) Leonard 

Martin’s stagecoach inn served guests in the 1840’s and 1850’s.  The entire 
third floor was a dance hall where many a dance was held.  It stood until 
the 1950’s.  Note the large Martin bird house in center and right photos.



Jesse Smith 
Stagecoach Inn, 
Caldwell

The Smiths came to the area in 1837 
and built the first frame home in the 
Town of Vernon.  He and wife, Sylvia, 
took in many a traveler there.  In 1847, 
the house burned and by 1850, the 
Smith’s had built this magnificent 
fieldstone inn with a ballroom on the 
3rd floor.



The Smith inn survives today as a private 
home with several original outbuildings.



This house on the corner of Stone School Road and Highway L  
(Janesville Plank)  be a stagecoach sized structure.  Midway 
between the Smith and Buena Vista inn locations  However, 
the current owner says the house was build in 1890.  A more 
likely location for an inn may have been in Beulah Station, less 
than a mile east.  More research needed.



The Buena Vista House, East Troy
Built by Samuel R. Bradley between 1843 and 1846 out of cobblestones he personally collected.  
It was the largest surviving river cobblestone commercial building remaining in the US.  It was a 
hotel for many years and later a tavern and restaurant.  The original owners mysteriously 
disappeared spurring ghost stories through the years.



The End!
A major local landmark on the National 
Historic Registry, “the Cobblestone”  was 
neglected in later years.  Once the roof 
leaked, the cobblestone masonry was 
compromised.  In 2022 it was condemned by 
the Village.



Stagecoach 
Inns 

Disappear

• The advent of the railroads  
in the 1850’s brought  a 
lower cost, faster, and 
safer travel option for the 
flood of settlers moving 
west.  Some stagecoach 
inn proprietors fought hard 
to keep railroad lines from 
following the same routes 
as  the old plank roads.  
Stagecoach lines survived 
for a time, but it was the 
end of an era.

• By the 1870’s, stagecoach 
inns were converted to 
private homes, taverns, or 
other business properties.  
Many were lost in the first 
half of the 20th century to 
decay. However,  a few 
have been preserved as 
museums, ex., the  Old 
Wade House (Greenbush) 
and Hawks Inn (Delafield.)



Appendix:   Stagecoach Inns and Plank Roads, 
an Account by Asa Craig (1847-1943)
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